
 

  
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOTICE 
TUESDAY FEBRUARY 22, 2022, 6:00 P.M. 

 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
AGENDA 

1. ROLL CALL 
  
2. APPROVE AGENDA AS PRESENTED AND/OR AMENDED 

 
3. PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION    
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THIS AGENDA) 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA – These are routine business items and will be acted upon by one Roll Call Vote without 

separate discussion unless a Councilmember or citizen requests an item to be removed or considered 
separately.  
a) Approve Minutes from February 15, 2022, Regular Council meeting and Budget Worksession  
b) Approve Payment of Bills  
c) Resolution 22-015 Approval of Change Order No. 1 Water System Improvements Shallow Well No. 7 Project 
d) Resolution No. 22-016 Approving Story County Dispatch Services Contract 
e) Approval of Public Works Utility I Position Employment Offer 

 
7. BUSINESS ITEMS 

a) Resolution No. 22-017 authorizing the use of a preliminary official statement for the sale of General 
Obligation Water Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A 

 
8. CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 
9. MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT T0 WORKSESSION 

 
11. WORKSESSION: DISCUSSION AND DIRECTION TO CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

Insurance, Personnel & Wages, FY 2023 Capital Improvement Plan Draft (And Long Range) 
   

 
UPCOMING WORK SESSION TOPICS AND REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

Joint Meeting/Council/Park & Recreation Board 
Joint Meeting/Council-Ballard School Board 

Comprehensive Plan/Future Space and Facility Needs  
Growth, Development and Annexation-Mapping Update 



Main Avenue Revitalization 
Other Topics of Interest to Mayor and Council 

 
For more information on this and other agenda items, please call the City Clerk’s Office at 515-597-2561 or visit 
the Clerk’s Office, City Administration Building at 515 N. Main Ave. Council agendas are available to the public at 
the City Clerk’s Office on Monday morning preceding Tuesday’s council meeting. Citizens can also request to 
receive meeting notices and agendas by email by calling the Clerk’s Office or sending their request via email. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION         
   
 
 
AGENDA HEADING: 
Council Items February 22, 2022 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  
Rita Conner, City Administrator 
 
SYNOPSIS:  
The information below summarizes the regular agenda items for February 22, 2022  
 
Consent Agenda 
6a. Minutes from December February 15, 2022 Regular Meeting and Worksession 
6b. Presentation of claims to be paid  
6c.  Change Order No. 1 for the Water System Improvements Shallow Well Project: see 
accompanying Council Communication and Resolution No. 22-015 for this item. 
6d. Resolution No. 22-016 Approving Story County Dispatch Services Contract 

• This contract is presented annually to Council from the Story County’s Sheriff’s office. It 
provides for dispatching services for the coming fiscal year. The annual contract is 
determined by the fall 2021 Consumer Price Index Report (6.2%), but it is agreed by the 
parties to not to exceed a 4% annual increase. FY 2023 total will be $32,606.53 and 
includes City of Huxley and City of Cambridge. The Cambridge portion will be included 
in the law enforcement services agreement between the cities.  

 
Business Items 
a.) Resolution No. 22-017 Authorizing the Use of a Preliminary Official Statement for the Sale 
of General Obligation Water Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A.  

• This is the second piece of debt required for funding the Water Treatment Plant 
Improvement Project and the Water Service System Improvements Shallow Well No. 7 
Project. The project is currently under construction. Analysis was completed in 2020 and 
2021 to bring scenarios to Council for financing the project. Remaining financing 
components include a water revenue bond, City of Huxley tax increment financing (TIF) 
funds, City of Huxley American Rescue Plan (ARP) funds, and Story County American 
Rescue Plan (ARP) funds. Additional materials are included for this item for Council 
review.  

 
Worksession Items 
a.) Insurance overview.  

• The draft preliminary FY 23 budget presents increased liability insurance costs, 
which staff and General Insurance will walk through at the worksession. 
Employee health insurance (which is showing a lower than expected FY 23 
increase) will also be reviewed for Council with Holmes Murphy.  

b.) Personnel  
• Included in your packet materials are the following: 

o Excel file of community comparisons 
 We have a small number of communities that have not responded 

to our inquiry, will add.  



 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION         
   
 

 Intent with communities included was to seek cities that had 
characteristics of strong growth, operate water/wastewater plants, 
have Park & Rec operations and facilities, and are comparable in 
population, but also growing. Growing cities are valuable 
comparisons for Huxley with our population projections, planning 
needs/staffing strategies and succession planning needs.  

o 2013 Comp Plan organizational chart 
o Draft organizational chart with recommended changes including: 

 Showing Public Works Utility Employee III (completed) 
promotion of existing employee, water treatment plant expansion 
and succession planning 

 Showing Public Works Utility Employee I (replacement new hire 
primarily for streets, stormwater, will also assist with other duties 
and projects in PW and Parks) 

 Showing PD under City Administrator, Chief is under Mayor by 
ordinance. Mayor and City Administrator currently communicate 
regularly with Chief on matters, with daily administration to CA. 

 FY 23 hiring of Deputy City Clerk 
• Utility, Zoning & Building Specialist (Amy’s position) to 

be outside City Clerk’s Office. 
 Intern has worked well in FY 22 for addressing special projects 

and some planning work. Intent would be to seek another intern in 
May/June. 

 Planning for future Community Development Department (shown) 
that would include Amy’s position, intern/future planner I. 

• This is also a succession planning strategy, over time 
segregating Community Development duties from the 
Public Works Department, allowing PW primary focus to 
be operation and maintenance of the City’s utilities, plants 
and streets.  

 
c.) Draft Capital Improvement Plan  
 

• To be provided; staff is still working with this document.  
o Minimal FY 23 work to be proposed with no borrowing.  

   



 
HUXLEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  
Tuesday, February 15, 2022 
 

These minutes are as recorded by the City Clerk and are subject to City Council approval at the next regular council meeting.  
 

COUNCIL MEETING:  The Huxley City Council held a special council meeting on the above date pursuant to rules of the 
council, notice posted at City Hall and onto website. Mayor Deaton called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 

ROLL CALL:  Kuhn, Pilcher, Echer, Roberts, Thompson 
 

AGENDA APPROVAL:  Motion by Roberts, second by Echer to approve agenda as presented.  Roll Call:  Pilcher, Echer, 
Roberts, Kuhn, Thompson voted yes. Motion carried. 

 

CITY STAFF PRESENT:  Rita Conner – City Administrator, Jolene Lettow – City Clerk, Cathy Van Maanen – Library Director 
 
CONSULTANTS:  Amy Beattie – City Attorney/Brick Gentry, Chip Schulz – Financial Advisor/Northland Securities  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
Mayor opened hearing on Proposed Amendment to the Huxley Housing Urban Renewal Area.  There being no discussion it 
was MOVED by Kuhn and seconded by Pilcher to close the hearing. 5 ayes. Motion carried.  
 
Motion – Roberts, second – Kuhn on Resolution No. 22-010 to Approve Urban Renewal Plan Amendment for the Huxley 
Housing Urban Renewal Area.  Roll Call: Thompson, Kuhn, Echer, Roberts voted yes; Pilcher – abstained.  Motion carried. 
 
Mayor opened hearing on Proposed Amendment to the Huxley Urban Renewal Area. There being no discussion it was 
MOVED by Roberts and seconded by Kuhn to close hearing.  5 ayes. Motion carried.   
 
Motion – Kuhn, second – Robert on Resolution No. 22-011 to Approve Urban Renewal Plan Amendment for the Huxley 
Urban Renewal Area.  Rollcall:  Roberts, Echer, Kuhn, Thompson, Echer voted yes.  Morion carried.      
 
Steve Quick, Meadow Lane Development, expressed his concerns with maximum amount listed in development agreement 
that city would provide to developer in tax increment payments.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
Motion by Roberts, second by Echer to approve Consent Agenda as listed.    

a. Approve Minutes from February 8, 2022, Regular Council meeting and Budget Worksession  
b. Resolution 22- 012 Setting a Date of Meeting (March 1) at which it is Proposed to Approve a 

Development Agreement with Meadow Lane Investments, L.L.C., Including Annual Appropriation 
Tax Increment Payments 

c. Resolution 22-013 Setting a Date of Meeting (March 1) at which it is Proposed to Approve a 
Development Agreement with Huxley Plaza, LLC, Including Annual Appropriation Tax Increment 
Payments 

d. Resolution 22-014 Setting a Date of Meeting (March 1) at which it is Proposed to Approve a 
Development Agreement with Van Houweling, CD II, Including Annual Appropriation Tax Increment 
Payments 

 

Consent Agenda Roll Call:  Pilcher, Echer, Roberts, Kuhn, Thompson voted yes. Motion carried. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: Iowa Code Section 21.5 subsection 1 subsection. To discuss strategy with legal counsel in matters 
that are presently in litigation or where litigation is imminent where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or 
disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that litigation. 
Motion – Pilcher, second – Thompson to move into closed session.  Roll Call:  Roberts, Echer, Kuhn, Thompson, 
Pilcher voted yes.  Motion carried.  In attendance:  Amy Beattie – city attorney, Mayor Deaton, council members:  
Roberts, Echer, Kuhn, Thompson, Pilcher, Jolene Lettow – City Clerk, Rita Conner – City Administrator.   



 
Motion – Pilcher, second – Thompson to adjourn to work session at 7:23pm.  5 ayes.  Motion carried.   
 
WORK SESSION: 
Mayor opened work session at 7:26pm 
 
Chip Schultz, financial advisor for Northland Securities, provided a presentation on the city’s debt service schedule 
and explanation of the city’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF).  
 
ADJOURNMENT: Motion – Roberts, second – Pilcher to adjourn meeting at 8:04pm. 5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 
 
Submitted by:  Jolene R. Lettow, City Clerk 







 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION         
   
 
 
 
AGENDA HEADING: 
Approving Payment Application No. 3 for the Water System Improvements Shallow Well No 7 
Project 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  
Rita Conner, City Administrator 
 
SYNOPSIS: 
Veenstra and Kimm, Inc (Forrest Aldrich, P.E., 3000 Westown Parkway West Des Moines, Iowa 
50266) has submitted Change Order No. 1 from Woodruff Construction (1920 Philadelphia 
Street\ Ames, Iowa 50010) . The change order reflects revisions requested by the Iowa 
Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) and has no cost impact to the project.  
 
Additional information is below and in the attachments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Amount:  N/A 
 
Funding Source:  N/A 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: NO 

 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION(S):  YES 
 

• October 12, 2021  Council Approved Notice to Proceed, Contract and Bonds  
• December 14, 2021  Council Approved Payment Application No. 1 
• January 11, 2022  Council Approved Payment Application No. 2 
• February 8, 2022  Council Approved Payment Application No. 3 

 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 
 
ANTICIPATED ACTIONS AND FUTURE COMMITMENTS: 

• Continued work on the project 
• Inspection and presentation of the public improvements for Council action and 

acceptance 
 
For more information on this and other agenda items, please call the City Clerk’s Office at 515-597-2561 or visit the 
Clerk’s Office, City Administration Building at 515 N. Main Ave.  Council agendas are available to the public at the 
City Clerk’s Office on Friday afternoon preceding Monday’s Council meeting. Citizens can also request to receive 
meeting notices and agendas by email by calling the Clerk’s Office or sending their request via email. 

 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-015 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 FOR THE  
WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS SHALLOW WELL NO. 7 PROJECT  

 
           WHEREAS, on October 12, 2021 by Resolution No. 21-034, City Council approved the notice to 
proceed, contract, and bond with a general contractor and authorized Mayor to execute the contract 
with Woodruff Construction for the Water Treatment Plant Improvements project and;  
 

WHEREAS, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. has reviewed a change order for changes requested by the 
Iowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) for contract revisions as part of obtaining an IDNR 
Construction Permit for the Project and recommend approval. 
 
             NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Huxley, Iowa, as follows:  
 
Change Order No. 1 is hereby approved.  
 
              
 
 
Roll Call   Aye  Nay  Absent 
 
Rory Echer    ___  ___    ___ 
David Kuhn    ___  ___    ___ 
Nikolas Pilcher   ___  ___    ___ 
Tracey Roberts   ___  ___    ___ 
Kevin Thompson  ___                      ___                         ___ 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 22nd  day of February 2022. 
 
 

APPROVAL BY MAYOR  
 
 
 I hereby approve the foregoing Resolution No. 22-015 by affixing below my official signature as 
Mayor of the City of Huxley, Iowa, this 22nd  day of February 2022 

 
 

                                                      ______________________________ 
                                                                            Kevin Deaton, Mayor           
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jolene R. Lettow, City Clerk 











Resolution No. 22-016 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING STORY COUNTY DISPATCHING SERVICES CONTRACT 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Huxley has need of dispatch services for telephone and radio messages to be 
received by the Police Department in Huxley and Cambridge; and 
 
WHEREAS, Story County has provided terms of a contract for dispatching services on a 24 hour per day 
basis; and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost for service is based on a per capita formula using the 2020 Census population 
numbers of 4,244 for Huxley and 827 for Cambridge for a total of 5,071; and 
 
WHEREAS, the total amount of the annual contract is $32,606.53 and will be paid in quarterly 
installments on July 1, October 1, January 1 and April 1 in the 2022 fiscal year.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the contract for dispatching services with Story County is hereby 
approved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED the 22nd  day of February 2022. 
 
 Aye Nay Absent 
 
Niko Pilcher 
 
David Kuhn 
 
Tracey Roberts 
 
Kevin Thompson 
 
Rory Echer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Kevin Deaton, Mayor 
Attest:  
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Jolene R. Lettow, City Clerk 
 



 











 

801 Grand Avenue | Suite 4100 | Des Moines, IA | 50309-8002 | T 515.283.1000 | F 515.283.1060 | dorsey.com 

February 16, 2022 

 
 
Via Email 
Rita Conner 
City Administrator/City Hall 
Huxley, Iowa 
 

Re: General Obligation Water Improvement and Refunding Loan Agreement 
  Our File No. 419996-66 
 
Dear Rita: 

We have prepared and attach the necessary proceedings for the February 22, 2022 City Council 
meeting authorizing the use of a preliminary official statement (the “P.O.S.”) in connection with the 
sale of the General Obligation Water Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A. 

The proceedings attached include the following items: 

1. Minutes of the meeting, followed by the resolution providing for the authorization of 
the P.O.S. for the sale of the Bonds.  

 
2. Attestation Certificate with respect to the validity of the transcript. 
 
Prior to the adoption of the resolution, you and the City Council should review the proposed 

P.O.S., which Northland Securities, Inc. is preparing, carefully for accuracy and to ensure that there 
are no important facts being left out of the document that might bear on potential risks to bond 
holders.  It should be noted that, while we will review and comment on the portions of the document 
that are pertinent to our role as bond counsel, we have not been engaged as disclosure counsel, and we 
will not engage in a full due diligence process to investigate the accuracy of financial data or any bond 
holder risks that are unknown to us, nor will we be providing any legal opinions with respect to the 
documents offering the Bonds for sale.  We are available to do this additional work as the City’s 
disclosure counsel if requested. 

As soon as possible after the City Council meeting, please return one fully executed copy of 
all of the completed pages in these proceedings.  If you have any questions, please contact Erin Regan, 
Cheryl Ritter or me. 

Best regards, 

John P. Danos 
Attachments 
 
cc: Jolene Lettow  
 Chip Schultz/Jenny Broden 
 BOKF, N.A 



Huxley / 419996-66 /Auth POS GO Water Imp & Rfdg LA 
 

-2- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

RESOLUTION NO. ____22-017__ 
 
Resolution authorizing the use of a preliminary official statement for the sale of 
General Obligation Water Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A 

WHEREAS, the City of Huxley (the “City”), in Story County, State of Iowa, pursuant to a 
prior resolution of the Council (the “Series 2016 Bond Resolution”), has heretofore issued its 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016, dated April 27, 2016 (the “Series 2016 Bonds”) 
in the aggregate principal amount of $3,315,000, a portion of which currently remains outstanding 
maturing on such dates and in such amounts and bearing interest at such rates as follows: 

Year 
Principal 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate Year 

Principal 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate 

2022 $630,000 2.50% 2025 $295,000 2.75% 
2023 $650,000 2.50% 2026 $295,000 3.00% 
2024 $675,000 2.50%    

; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Series 2016 Bond Resolution, the City reserved the right to 
call the Series 2016 Bonds maturing in the years 2022 to 2026, inclusive, (the “Callable Series 
2016 Bonds”) for optional early redemption on June 1, 2022, or on any date thereafter on terms of 
par and accrued interest; and 

WHEREAS, the City heretofore proposed to enter into a loan agreement (the “Loan 
Agreement”), pursuant to the provisions of Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa, and to borrow 
money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $7,235,000 for the purpose of paying the 
costs, to that extent, of (1) planning, designing and constructing improvements and extensions to 
the City’s Municipal Waterworks Utility System (the “Utility”); and (2) current refunding the 
Callable Series 2016 Bonds, and pursuant to law and a notice duly published, the City Council has 
held a public hearing on such proposal on November 23, 2021; and 

 WHEREAS, a Preliminary Official Statement (the “P.O.S.”) has been prepared to facilitate 
the sale of the General Obligation Water Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A (the 
“Bonds”) in evidence of the obligation of the City under the Loan Agreement, and it is now 
necessary to make provision for the approval of the P.O.S. and to authorize its use by Northland 
Securities, Inc. (the “Underwriter”) as the underwriter of the issuance of the Bonds; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Huxley, Iowa, as 
follows: 

Section 1.   The City Administrator is hereby authorized to take such action as shall be 
deemed necessary and appropriate, with the assistance of the Underwriter to prepare the P.O.S. 
describing the Bonds and providing for the terms and conditions of their sale, and all action 
heretofore taken in this regard is hereby ratified and approved. 



Huxley / 419996-66 /Auth POS GO Water Imp & Rfdg LA 
 

-3- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

Section 2. The use by the Underwriter of the P.O.S. relating to the Bonds in 
substantially the form as has been presented to and considered by the City Council is hereby 
approved, and the Underwriter is hereby authorized to prepare and use a final Official Statement 
for the Bonds substantially in the form of the P.O.S. but with such changes therein as are required 
to conform the same to the terms of the Bonds and the resolution, when adopted, providing for the 
sale and issuance of the Bonds, and the City Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute a final Official Statement for the Bonds, if requested.  The P.O.S. as of its date is deemed 
final by the City within the meaning of Rule 15(c)(2)-12 of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 

Section 3. Further action with respect to the Loan Agreement and the Bonds is hereby 
adjourned to the City Council meeting scheduled for March 8, 2022. 

Section 4. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 5. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval, as provided by law. 

Passed and approved February 22, 2022. 

  
Mayor 

Attest: 

  
City Clerk 



Huxley / 419996-66 /Auth POS GO Water Imp & Rfdg LA 
 

-4- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

ATTESTATION CERTIFICATE 

STATE OF IOWA 
COUNTY OF STORY  SS: 
CITY OF HUXLEY 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of Huxley, do hereby certify that attached hereto 
is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the City Council relating to a public hearing and 
additional action on the proposal to enter into certain a Loan Agreement and to issue General 
Obligation Water Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A in evidence of the City’s 
obligation under the Loan Agreement and the approval of a preliminary official statement, as 
referred to herein. 

WITNESS MY HAND this ________ day of _____________, 2022. 

  
City Clerk 

 

 



Huxley / 419996-66 /Auth POS GO Water Imp & Rfdg LA 
 

-1- 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP, ATTORNEYS, DES MOINES, IOWA 

MINUTES TO AUTHORIZE 
PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
FOR SALE OF BONDS 

419996-66 

Huxley, Iowa 

February 22, 2022 

The City Council of the City of Huxley, Iowa, met on February 22, 2022, at _____ p.m., at 
the ___________Huxley City Hall 515 N Main Avenue_____________________, in the City.   

The Mayor presided and the roll was called showing the following members of the City 
Council present and absent: 

Present:    

Absent:     . 

After due consideration and discussion, Council Member __________________ 
introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption, seconded by Council Member 
____________________.  The Mayor put the question upon the adoption of said resolution, and 
the roll being called, the following Council Members voted: 

Ayes:      

Nays:    . 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted, as hereinafter set out. 

• • • • • 

At the conclusion of the meeting, and upon motion and vote, the City Council adjourned. 

  
Mayor 

Attest: 

        
City Clerk 



City of Huxley, Iowa

Standard & Poor’s Rating Agency Presentation 

$6,935,000* General Obligation Water Improvement and
Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A

February 17, 2022
12:30 p.m. Central Time

Dial 1‐888‐450‐5996; Passcode 959 229#

* Preliminary, subject to change



Call Participants

City Staff
• City Administrator Rita Conner
• Finance Director/City Clerk Jolene Lettow

2

Underwriting / Financing – Northland Public Finance
• Chip Schultz, Managing Director, Public Finance
• Amy Novak, Senior Analyst, Public Finance



Transaction Summary and Overview

3

Issuer City of Huxley, Iowa

Estimated Par Amount $6,935,000 * General Obligation Water Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A

Rating  Requested from Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings 

Tax Status Federal Tax Exempt, Bank Qualified; State Taxable

Use of Funds

Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to finance a portion of the planning, designing & construction of 
improvements and extensions to the Municipal Waterworks Utility System (expansion of Water 
Plant and Construction of Well No. 7); to current refund the June 1, 2022 through 2026 maturities, 
of the City’s General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 (2026 final maintained on refunding).

Security

Pursuant to the Resolution, the Bonds and the interest thereon are general obligations of the Issuer, 
and all taxable property within the corporate boundaries of the Issuer is subject to the levy of taxes 
to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds without constitutional or statutory limitation as to 
rate or amount.

Bond Structure Fixed rate bonds with annual maturities from June 1, 2022 to June 1, 2032 *

Optional Redemption June 1, 2028 * @ Par

Interest Semiannually, beginning June 1, 2022

Proposed Pricing Date March 3, 2022 (Preliminary order period / indications of interest) * 

Proposed BPA Consideration March 8, 2022 *  (Proposed City Council consideration) 

Closing Date March 30, 2022 *

* Preliminary, Subject to Change



Location of Huxley – Positioned for Continued Future Growth

The location of Huxley relative to 
the Ames and Des Moines metro 
areas provides an optimal array of 
employment, cultural and 
recreation alternatives for City 
residents.

4Source: Google Maps



City Population History

1980 Census  1,884
1990 Census  2,047
2000 Census  2,316
2006 Census (special) 2,956
2010 Census  3,317
2020 Census  4,266

5

Huxley is the most rapidly‐growing City in Story County and 
among the fastest growing cities in the State of Iowa. 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau; Ames Tribune



Population Projections – Assuming 3% or 5% Growth

6



City Comparative Income Data – Exceptionally Strong

7

Source: American Community Survey; U.S. Census Bureau

Comparative income levels are listed below for the City, State and the United States

Description Huxley State of Iowa United States
Median Family Income  $113,264 $77,099 $77,263
Per Capita Income  $40,111 $32,176 $34,103



Building Permit History – Existing and Future Customer Growth

The City’s strong building permit history is expected to continue, even increase, 
with three (known) significant residential developments. 
More homes = Greater valuation for debt service payments & City operations.

8

BUILDING PERMIT HISTORY

Calendar Year Permits
(January 1 to December 31)

Commercial / 
Industrial 

Number of Permits
Residential 

Number of Permits
Total 

Number of Permits
Total Permit

Valuation (estimated)

2021 (as of Dec. 31, 2021) 4 40 44 $14,129,958

2020 3 45 48 15,153,185

2019 4 40 44 15,701,950

2018 1 67 68 17,563,109

2017 ‐ 52 52 17,493,985

2016 2 67 69 18,177,585

Average (based on 
above completed years) 3 52 54 $16,369,962

Source: City of Huxley Internal Data



Exceptional Valuation Growth – Nearly FY 2013‐14 (100%)

9

9

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

0

50,000,000

100,000,000

150,000,000

200,000,000

250,000,000

300,000,000

350,000,000

400,000,000

450,000,000

Fiscal Year FY 2013‐14 FY 2014‐15 FY 2015‐16 FY 2016‐17 FY 2017‐18 FY 2018‐19 FY 2019‐20 FY 2020‐21 FY 2021‐22 FY 2022‐23

Valuation Growth History (Ten Years)

100% / Actual Valuation Taxable Valuation 100% Valuation Growth (%) Taxable Valuation Growth (%)



General Fund History – Very Strong Trend

As a percentage of both receipts and disbursements, the City has developed a 
strong liquidity position well over 100%. 

10

A B C D E F G H I

Beginning Net Transfers Ending  Balance as Balance as %
Fiscal Year Fund Balance Receipts  Disbursements   In / (Out) Fund Balance % of Receipts of Disbursements

1 FY 2016‐17 1,843,102  2,146,201  1,863,252  (783,144) 1,342,907  62.6% 72.1%

2 FY 2017‐18 1,342,907  1,915,155  1,823,268  (54,910) 1,379,884  72.1% 75.7%

3 FY 2018‐19 1,379,884  2,279,363  2,097,028  81,858  1,644,077  72.1% 78.4%

4 FY 2019‐20 1,644,077  2,203,875  2,516,494  1,132,945  2,464,403  111.8% 97.9%

5 FY 2020‐21 2,464,403  2,681,151  2,229,614  70,462  2,986,402  111.4% 133.9%

Source: Audited Financial Statements



Huxley Aerial Map with Current (New) Developments (Underway)

11



Plat Map for Meadow Lane Development (~380 Residential lots)

12



Plat Map for Westview Heights Development (~272 Residential lots)

13



Plat Map for Blue Sky Estates Development
~ 36 Residential lots, ranging from .30 acre to 1.00 acre

14



Water Service Area 

A. ___

15

Interstate 35



Review of Planned Water Utility Improvements 
Three Components Bid Under Two Construction Contracts

City‐imposed water conservation order in July of 2020, driven by greater 
demand for Water, brought the City to the point of moving forward with an 
expansion of its Water Treatment Plant facility. 

1) Expansion of the City’s Water Treatment Plant which will expand the daily 
treatment capacity to approximately 1,540,800 gallons (per day), from the 
current 1,000,000 gallons per day, based on the utilization of two reverse 
osmosis treatment units (770,400 gallons per unit, per day) and one unit on 
standby.  The design capacity of the expanded plant is 2,310,000 gallons per 
day which assumes full utilization of three reverse osmosis units.  Additional 
equipment would need to be added to the plant, in the future, in order to 
fully use three reverse osmosis treatment units. [Contract #1]

2) Installation of additional storage capacity at Water Plant, including a 
360,000 gallon storage tank. [Contract #1]

3) Construction of an additional well (Well No. 7).   [Contract #2]

16



Water Plant Improvements:  Design Capacity of Expanded Treatment Plant 

Plant expansion design is intended to treat 1.54 million gallons per day with the 
ability to expand (with additional equipment) to 2.31 million gallons per day.

17

Source: Facility study from engineers Veenstra & Kimm; reflects prior 2020 cost estimate. 



Water Plant Improvements:  (1) Reverse Osmosis Filters

A. __

18Source: Engineers Veenstra & Kimm



Water Plant Improvements:  (2) Expanded Water Storage

Adds ground storage of 360,000 
gallons (additional). 

19

Source: Engineers Veenstra & Kimm



Water Utility Improvements:  (3) Well Number 7 

A. __

20Source: Engineers Veenstra & Kimm



Water Improvements – Sources / Uses for Series 2021A Water Revenue & 2022A GO Bonds

21



Credit Highlights

1) Strong valuation growth trend, with average annual Taxable Valuation growth of 
approximately 7.8% over past ten‐year period.

2) Exceptional General Fund liquidity reflecting June 30, 2021 audited fund balance 
well exceeding 100% of both annual revenues and expenditures.

3) Building permits continue to be robust and resilient, averaging 52 homes over past 
five years and commercial valuation picking up. 

4) Future (underway) development will ensure strong tax base and valuation. 

5) Remarkable community wealth factors. 

6) Population growth based on 2020 Census, reflecting growth of 28% over 2010 
Census, and additional growth has continued since 2020 count.  

7) Rapid principal amortization with all General Obligation debt to be paid off over next 
ten years (June 1, 2032), including proposed Series 2022A Bonds.

22



Summary and Questions

Thank you!  
We are grateful for your time.

23














































	Council Agenda February 22 2022
	Council Tracking Sheet February 22 Meeting
	Agenda Heading:
	Synopsis:

	2.15.22  Council Minutes
	2-22-22 Council Claims List
	Council Communication Change Order 1 Water Plant
	Agenda Heading:
	Synopsis:
	Fiscal Impact:
	Amount:  N/A
	Funding Source:  N/A
	Additional Information: NO
	Previous Council Action(s):  YES
	Anticipated Actions and Future Commitments:

	Resolution for Change Order 1 Water Plant
	Change Order No. 1 transmit
	Change Order No. 1 certified
	DWG NO 5X
	Resolution Story County Dispatch Contract
	FY 2023 Story County Dispatch Contract
	Auth POS GO Water Imp & Rfdg LA (Huxley #66 2021)-v2
	Rating Agency Presentation_2022A GO_2-17-2022
	2013 Comp Plan Org Chart
	Draft Organizational Chart
	2018 Compensation Policy-Matrix



